



SPONSOR: Rep. Lynn & Rep. Bush & Rep. Griffith & Sen. Brown &
Sen. Delcollo & Sen. Hansen & Sen. Townsend
Reps. Brady, Dorsey Walker, Ramone, Spiegelman; Sen.
Ennis

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
150th GENERAL ASSEMBLY

HOUSE BILL NO. 341

AN ACT TO AMEND TITLE 8 OF THE DELAWARE CODE RELATING TO THE GENERAL CORPORATION LAW.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE:

1 Section 1. Amend § 102, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
2 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

3 § 102 Contents of certificate of incorporation.

4 (a) The certificate of incorporation shall set forth:

5 (1) The name of the corporation, which (i) shall contain 1 of the words “association,” “company,”
6 “corporation,” “club,” “foundation,” “fund,” “incorporated,” “institute,” “society,” “union,” “syndicate,” or “limited,”
7 (or abbreviations thereof, with or without punctuation), or words (or abbreviations thereof, with or without
8 punctuation) of like import of foreign countries or jurisdictions (provided they are written in roman characters or
9 letters); provided, however, that the Division of Corporations in the Department of State may waive such requirement
10 (unless it determines that such name is, or might otherwise appear to be, that of a natural person) if such corporation
11 executes, acknowledges and files with the Secretary of State in accordance with § 103 of this title a certificate stating
12 that its total assets, as defined in § 503(i) of this title, are not less than \$10,000,000, or, in the sole discretion of the
13 Division of Corporations in the Department of State, if the corporation is both a nonprofit nonstock corporation and an
14 association of professionals, (ii) shall be such as to distinguish it upon the records in the office of the Division of
15 Corporations in the Department of State from the names that are reserved on such records and from the names on such
16 records of each other corporation, partnership, limited partnership, limited liability company, registered series of a
17 limited liability company, registered series of a limited partnership or statutory trust organized or registered as a
18 domestic or foreign corporation, partnership, limited partnership, limited liability company, registered series of a
19 limited liability company, registered series of a limited partnership or statutory trust under the laws of this State, except
20 with the written consent of the person who has reserved such name or such other foreign corporation or domestic or
21 foreign partnership, limited partnership, limited liability company, registered series of a limited liability company,
22 registered series of a limited partnership or statutory trust, executed, acknowledged and filed with the Secretary of
23 State in accordance with § 103 of this title, or except that, without prejudicing any rights of the person who has

24 reserved such name or such other foreign corporation or domestic or foreign partnership, limited partnership, limited
25 liability company, registered series of a limited liability company, registered series of a limited partnership or statutory
26 trust, the Division of Corporations in the Department of State may waive such requirement if the corporation
27 demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Secretary of State that the corporation or a predecessor entity previously has
28 made substantial use of such name or a substantially similar name, that the corporation has made reasonable efforts to
29 secure such written consent, and that such waiver is in the interest of the State, (iii) except as permitted by § 395 of this
30 title, shall not contain the word “trust,” and (iv) shall not contain the word “bank,” or any variation thereof, except for
31 the name of a bank reporting to and under the supervision of the State Bank Commissioner of this State or a subsidiary
32 of a bank or savings association (as those terms are defined in the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, as amended, at 12
33 U.S.C. § 1813), or a corporation regulated under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, 12 U.S.C. §
34 1841 et seq., or the Home Owners’ Loan Act, as amended, 12 U.S.C. § 1461 et seq.; provided, however, that this
35 section shall not be construed to prevent the use of the word “bank,” or any variation thereof, in a context clearly not
36 purporting to refer to a banking business or otherwise likely to mislead the public about the nature of the business of
37 the corporation or to lead to a pattern and practice of abuse that might cause harm to the interests of the public or the
38 State as determined by the Division of Corporations in the Department of State;

39 Section 2. Amend § 102, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
40 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

41 § 102 Contents of certificate of incorporation.

42 (b) In addition to the matters required to be set forth in the certificate of incorporation by subsection (a) of this
43 section, the certificate of incorporation may also contain any or all of the following matters:

44 (1) Any provision for the management of the business and for the conduct of the affairs of the corporation,
45 and any provision creating, defining, limiting and regulating the powers of the corporation, the directors, and the
46 stockholders, or any class of the stockholders, or the governing body, members, or any class or group of members of a
47 nonstock corporation; if such provisions are not contrary to the laws of this State. Any provision which is required or
48 permitted by any section of this chapter to be stated in the bylaws may instead be stated in the certificate of
49 incorporation.

50 (2) The following provisions, in haec verba, (i), for a corporation other than a nonstock corporation, viz:

51 Whenever a compromise or arrangement is proposed between this corporation and its creditors or any class of
52 them and/or between this corporation and its stockholders or any class of them, any court of equitable jurisdiction
53 within the State of Delaware may, on the application in a summary way of this corporation or of any creditor or

54 stockholder thereof or on the application of any receiver or receivers appointed for this corporation under § 291 of
55 Title 8 of the Delaware Code or on the application of trustees in dissolution or of any receiver or receivers
56 appointed for this corporation under § 279 of Title 8 of the Delaware Code order a meeting of the creditors or
57 class of creditors, and/or of the stockholders or class of stockholders of this corporation, as the case may be, to be
58 summoned in such manner as the said court directs. If a majority in number representing three fourths in value of
59 the creditors or class of creditors, and/or of the stockholders or class of stockholders of this corporation, as the case
60 may be, agree to any compromise or arrangement and to any reorganization of this corporation as consequence of
61 such compromise or arrangement, the said compromise or arrangement and the said reorganization shall, if
62 sanctioned by the court to which the said application has been made, be binding on all the creditors or class of
63 creditors, and/or on all the stockholders or class of stockholders, of this corporation, as the case may be, and also
64 on this corporation; or

65 (ii), for a nonstock corporation, viz:

66 Whenever a compromise or arrangement is proposed between this corporation and its creditors or any class of
67 them and/or between this corporation and its members or any class of them, any court of equitable jurisdiction
68 within the State of Delaware may, on the application in a summary way of this corporation or of any creditor or
69 member thereof or on the application of any receiver or receivers appointed for this corporation under § 291 of
70 Title 8 of the Delaware Code or on the application of trustees in dissolution or of any receiver or receivers
71 appointed for this corporation under § 279 of Title 8 of the Delaware Code order a meeting of the creditors or class
72 of creditors, and/or of the members or class of members of this corporation, as the case may be, to be summoned
73 in such manner as the said court directs. If a majority in number representing three fourths in value of the creditors
74 or class of creditors, and/or of the members or class of members of this corporation, as the case may be, agree to
75 any compromise or arrangement and to any reorganization of this corporation as consequence of such compromise
76 or arrangement, the said compromise or arrangement and the said reorganization shall, if sanctioned by the court to
77 which the said application has been made, be binding on all the creditors or class of creditors, and/or on all the
78 members or class of members, of this corporation, as the case may be, and also on this corporation;

79 (3) Such provisions as may be desired granting to the holders of the stock of the corporation, or the holders of
80 any class or series of a class thereof, the preemptive right to subscribe to any or all additional issues of stock of the
81 corporation of any or all classes or series thereof, or to any securities of the corporation convertible into such stock. No
82 stockholder shall have any preemptive right to subscribe to an additional issue of stock or to any security convertible
83 into such stock unless, and except to the extent that, such right is expressly granted to such stockholder in the

84 certificate of incorporation. All such rights in existence on July 3, 1967, shall remain in existence unaffected by this
85 paragraph unless and until changed or terminated by appropriate action which expressly provides for the change or
86 termination;

87 (4) Provisions requiring for any corporate action, the vote of a larger portion of the stock or of any class or
88 series thereof, or of any other securities having voting power, or a larger number of the directors, than is required by
89 this chapter;

90 (5) A provision limiting the duration of the corporation's existence to a specified date; otherwise, the
91 corporation shall have perpetual existence;

92 (6) A provision imposing personal liability for the debts of the corporation on its stockholders to a specified
93 extent and upon specified conditions; otherwise, the stockholders of a corporation shall not be personally liable for the
94 payment of the corporation's debts except as they may be liable by reason of their own conduct or acts;

95 (7) A provision eliminating or limiting the personal liability of a director to the corporation or its stockholders
96 for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, provided that such provision shall not eliminate or
97 limit the liability of a director: (i) For any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders;
98 (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law; (iii)
99 under § 174 of this title; or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit. No
100 such provision shall eliminate or limit the liability of a director for any act or omission occurring prior to the date when
101 such provision becomes effective. An amendment, repeal or elimination of such a provision shall not affect its
102 application with respect to an act or omission by a director occurring before such amendment, repeal or elimination
103 unless the provision provides otherwise at the time of such act or omission. All references in this paragraph to a
104 director shall also be deemed to refer to such other person or persons, if any, who, pursuant to a provision of the
105 certificate of incorporation in accordance with § 141(a) of this title, exercise or perform any of the powers or duties
106 otherwise conferred or imposed upon the board of directors by this title.

107 Section 3. Amend § 108, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
108 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

109 § 108 Organization meeting of incorporators or directors named in certificate of incorporation.

110 (c) ~~Any~~ Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate of incorporation, (1) any action permitted to be taken at the
111 organization meeting of the incorporators or directors, as the case may be, may be taken without a meeting if each
112 incorporator or director, where there is more than 1, or the sole incorporator or director where there is only 1, consents
113 thereto in writing or by electronic transmission and (2) a consent may be documented, signed and delivered in any manner

114 permitted by § 116 of this title. Any person (whether or not then an incorporator or director) may provide, whether through
115 instruction to an agent or otherwise, that a consent to action will be effective at a future time (including a time determined
116 upon the happening of an event), no later than 60 days after such instruction is given or such provision is made and such
117 consent shall be deemed to have been given for purposes of this subsection at such effective time so long as such person is
118 then an incorporator or director, as the case may be, and did not revoke the consent prior to such time. Any such consent
119 shall be revocable prior to its becoming effective.

120 Section 4. Amend § 110, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
121 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

122 § 110 Emergency bylaws and other powers in emergency.

123 (a) The board of directors of any corporation may adopt emergency bylaws, subject to repeal or change by action
124 of the stockholders, which, ~~shall~~ notwithstanding any different provision elsewhere in this chapter or in Chapters 3
125 [~~repealed~~] and 5 [~~repealed~~] of Title 26, or in Chapter 7 of Title 5, or in the certificate of incorporation or bylaws, shall be
126 operative during any emergency resulting from an attack on the United States or on a locality in which the corporation
127 conducts its business or customarily holds meetings of its board of directors or its stockholders, or during any nuclear or
128 atomic disaster, or during the existence of any catastrophe, including, but not limited to, an epidemic or pandemic, and a
129 declaration of a national emergency by the United States government, or other similar emergency condition, ~~as a result of~~
130 ~~which~~ irrespective of whether a quorum of the board of directors or a standing committee thereof ~~cannot~~ can readily be
131 convened for action. The emergency bylaws contemplated by this section may be adopted by the board of directors or, if a
132 quorum cannot be readily convened for a meeting, by a majority of the directors present. The emergency bylaws may make
133 any provision that may be practical and necessary for the circumstances of the emergency, including provisions that:

134 (1) A meeting of the board of directors or a committee thereof may be called by any officer or director in such
135 manner and under such conditions as shall be prescribed in the emergency bylaws;

136 (2) The director or directors in attendance at the meeting, or any greater number fixed by the emergency
137 bylaws, shall constitute a quorum; and

138 (3) The officers or other persons designated on a list approved by the board of directors before the emergency,
139 all in such order of priority and subject to such conditions and for such period of time (not longer than reasonably
140 necessary after the termination of the emergency) as may be provided in the emergency bylaws or in the resolution
141 approving the list, shall, to the extent required to provide a quorum at any meeting of the board of directors, be deemed
142 directors for such meeting.

143 (b) The board of directors, either before or during any such emergency, may provide, and from time to time
144 modify, lines of succession in the event that during such emergency any or all officers or agents of the corporation shall for
145 any reason be rendered incapable of discharging their duties.

146 (c) The board of directors, either before or during any such emergency, may, effective in the emergency, change
147 the head office or designate several alternative head offices or regional offices, or authorize the officers so to do.

148 (d) No officer, director or employee acting in accordance with any emergency bylaws shall be liable except for
149 wilful misconduct.

150 (e) To the extent not inconsistent with any emergency bylaws so adopted, the bylaws of the corporation shall
151 remain in effect during any emergency and upon its termination the emergency bylaws shall cease to be operative.

152 (f) Unless otherwise provided in emergency bylaws, notice of any meeting of the board of directors during such an
153 emergency may be given only to such of the directors as it may be feasible to reach at the time and by such means as may
154 be feasible at the time, including publication or radio.

155 (g) To the extent required to constitute a quorum at any meeting of the board of directors during such an
156 emergency, the officers of the corporation who are present shall, unless otherwise provided in emergency bylaws, be
157 deemed, in order of rank and within the same rank in order of seniority, directors for such meeting.

158 (h) Nothing contained in this section shall be deemed exclusive of any other provisions for emergency powers
159 consistent with other sections of this title which have been or may be adopted by corporations created under this chapter.

160 (i) During any emergency condition of a type described in paragraph (a) of this section, the board of directors (or,
161 if a quorum cannot be readily convened for a meeting, a majority of the directors present) may (i) take any action that it
162 determines to be practical and necessary to address the circumstances of such emergency condition with respect to a
163 meeting of stockholders of the corporation notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this chapter or in Chapter 7 of Title
164 5 or in the certificate of incorporation or bylaws, including, but not limited to, (1) to postpone any such meeting to a later
165 time or date (with the record date for determining the stockholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, such meeting
166 applying to the postponed meeting irrespective of § 213 of this title), and (2) with respect to a corporation subject to the
167 reporting requirements of § 13(a) or § 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and
168 regulations promulgated thereunder, to notify stockholders of any postponement or a change of the place of the meeting (or
169 a change to hold the meeting solely by means of remote communication) solely by a document publicly filed by the
170 corporation with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to § 13, § 14 or § 15(d) of such Act and such rules and
171 regulations; and (ii) with respect to any dividend that has been declared as to which the record date has not occurred,
172 change each of the record date and payment date to a later date or dates (provided the payment date as so changed is not

173 more than 60 days after the record date as so changed); provided that, in either case, the corporation gives notice of such
174 change to stockholders as promptly as practicable thereafter (and in any event before the record date theretofore in effect),
175 which notice, in the case of a corporation subject to the reporting requirements of § 13(a) or § 15(d) of the Securities
176 Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, may be given solely by a
177 document publicly filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to § 13, § 14 or § 15(d) of such Act and
178 such rules and regulations. No person shall be liable, and no meeting of stockholders shall be postponed or voided, for the
179 failure to make a stocklist available pursuant to § 219 of this title if it was not practicable to allow inspection during any
180 such emergency condition.

181 Section 5. Amend § 116, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
182 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

183 § 116 Document form, signature and delivery.

184 (a) Except as provided in subsection (b) of this section, without limiting the manner in which any act or transaction
185 may be documented, or the manner in which a document may be signed or delivered:

186 (1) Any act or transaction contemplated or governed by this chapter or the certificate of incorporation or
187 bylaws may be provided for in a document, and an electronic transmission shall be deemed the equivalent of a written
188 document. “Document” means:

189 a. Any tangible medium on which information is inscribed, and includes handwritten, typed, printed or
190 similar instruments, and copies of such instruments; and

191 b. An electronic transmission.

192 (2) Whenever this chapter or the certificate of incorporation or bylaws requires or permits a signature, the
193 signature may be a manual, facsimile, conformed or electronic signature. “Electronic signature” means an electronic
194 symbol or process that is attached to, or logically associated with, a document and executed or adopted by a person
195 with an intent to execute, authenticate or adopt the document. A person may execute a document with such person’s
196 signature.

197 (3) Unless otherwise agreed between the sender and recipient (and in the case of proxies or consents given by
198 or on behalf of a stockholder, subject to the additional requirements set forth in § 212(c)(2) & (3) and § 228(d)(1),
199 respectively, of this title), an electronic transmission shall be deemed delivered to a person for purposes of this chapter
200 and the certificate of incorporation and bylaws when it enters an information processing system that the person has
201 designated for the purpose of receiving electronic transmissions of the type delivered, so long as the electronic
202 transmission is in a form capable of being processed by that system and such person is able to retrieve the electronic

203 transmission. Whether a person has so designated an information processing system is determined by the certificate of
204 incorporation, the bylaws or from the context and surrounding circumstances, including the parties' conduct. An
205 electronic transmission is delivered under this section even if no person is aware of its receipt. Receipt of an electronic
206 acknowledgement from an information processing system establishes that an electronic transmission was received but,
207 by itself, does not establish that the content sent corresponds to the content received.

208 This chapter shall not prohibit 1 or more persons from conducting a transaction in accordance with Chapter 12A of
209 Title 6 so long as the part or parts of the transaction that are governed by this chapter are documented, signed and delivered
210 in accordance with this subsection or otherwise in accordance with this chapter. This subsection shall apply solely for
211 purposes of determining whether an act or transaction has been documented, and the document has been signed and
212 delivered, in accordance with this chapter, the certificate of incorporation and the bylaws.

213 (b) Subsection (a) of this section shall not apply to:

214 (1) A document filed with or submitted to the Secretary of State, the Register in Chancery, or a court or other
215 judicial or governmental body of this State;

216 (2) A document comprising part of the stock ledger;

217 (3) A certificate representing a security;

218 (4) Any document expressly referenced as a notice (or waiver of notice) by this chapter, the certificate of
219 incorporation or bylaws;

220 ~~(5) A consent in lieu of a meeting given by a director, stockholder or incorporator;~~

221 ~~(6) (5) A ballot to vote on actions at a meeting of stockholders; and~~

222 ~~(7) (6) An act or transaction effected pursuant to § 280 of this title or subchapters III, XIII or XVI of this~~
223 ~~chapter.~~

224 The foregoing shall not create any presumption about the lawful means to document a matter addressed by this
225 subsection, or the lawful means to sign or deliver a document addressed by this subsection. ~~A No~~ provision of the
226 certificate of incorporation or bylaws shall ~~not~~ limit the application of subsection (a) of this section ~~unless the provision~~
227 ~~except for a provision that~~ expressly restricts ~~one or more of the means of documenting an act or transaction, or of signing~~
228 ~~or delivering a document, permitted by subsection (a) of this section~~ or prohibits the use of an electronic transmission or
229 electronic signature (or any form thereof) or expressly restricts or prohibits the delivery of an electronic transmission to an
230 information processing system.

231 Section 6. Amend § 132, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
232 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

233 § 132 Registered agent in State; resident agent.

234 (a) Every corporation shall have and maintain in this State a registered agent, which agent may be any of:

235 (1) The corporation itself;

236 (2) An individual resident in this State;

237 (3) A domestic corporation (other than the corporation itself), a domestic partnership (whether general
238 (including a limited liability partnership) or limited (including a limited liability limited partnership)), a domestic
239 limited liability company or a domestic statutory trust; or

240 (4) A foreign corporation, a foreign ~~partnership (whether general (including a limited liability partnership), or~~
241 a foreign limited partnership, (including a foreign limited liability limited partnership), a foreign limited liability
242 company or a foreign statutory trust.

243 Section 7. Amend § 135, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
244 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

245 § 135 Resignation of registered agent coupled with appointment of successor.

246 The registered agent of 1 or more corporations may resign and appoint a successor registered agent by filing a
247 certificate with the Secretary of State, stating the name and address of the successor agent, in accordance with § 102(a)(2)
248 of this title. There shall be attached to such certificate a statement of each affected corporation ratifying and approving such
249 change of registered agent. Each such statement shall be executed and acknowledged in accordance with § 103 of this title.
250 Upon such filing, the successor registered agent shall become the registered agent of such corporations as have ratified and
251 approved such substitution and the successor registered agent's address, as stated in such certificate, shall become the
252 address of each such corporation's registered office in this State. ~~The Secretary of State shall then issue a certificate that the~~
253 ~~successor registered agent has become the registered agent of the corporations so ratifying and approving such change and~~
254 ~~setting out the names of such corporations.~~

255 Section 8. Amend § 141, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
256 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

257 § 141 Board of directors; powers; number, qualifications, terms and quorum; committees; classes of directors;
258 nonstock corporations; reliance upon books; action without meeting; removal.

259 (f) Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate of incorporation or bylaws, (1) any action required or permitted to
260 be taken at any meeting of the board of directors or of any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting if all
261 members of the board or committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing, or by electronic transmission, and (2) a
262 consent may be documented, signed and delivered in any manner permitted by § 116 of this title. Any person (whether or

263 not then a director) may provide, whether through instruction to an agent or otherwise, that a consent to action will be
264 effective at a future time (including a time determined upon the happening of an event), no later than 60 days after such
265 instruction is given or such provision is made and such consent shall be deemed to have been given for purposes of this
266 subsection at such effective time so long as such person is then a director and did not revoke the consent prior to such time.
267 Any such consent shall be revocable prior to its becoming effective. After an action is taken, the consent or consents
268 relating thereto shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the board of directors, or the committee thereof, in the
269 same paper or electronic form as the minutes are maintained.

270 Section 9. Amend § 145, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
271 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

272 § 145 Indemnification of officers, directors, employees and agents; insurance.

273 (c)(1) To the extent that a present or former director or officer of a corporation has been successful on the merits or
274 otherwise in defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to in subsections (a) and (b) of this section, or in defense of
275 any claim, issue or matter therein, such person shall be indemnified against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually
276 and reasonably incurred by such person in connection therewith. For indemnification with respect to any act or omission
277 occurring after December 31, 2020, references to "officer" for purposes of this subsection (c)(1) and (2) shall mean only a
278 person who at the time of such act or omission is deemed to have consented to service by the delivery of process to the
279 registered agent of the corporation pursuant to section 3114(b) of title 10 (for purposes of this sentence only, treating
280 residents of this State as if they were nonresidents to apply section 3114(b) of title 10 to this sentence).

281 (2) The corporation may indemnify any other person who is not a present or former director or officer of the
282 corporation against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by such person to the extent
283 he or she has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to in
284 subsections (a) and (b) of this section, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein.

285 (d) Any indemnification under subsections (a) and (b) of this section (unless ordered by a court) shall be made by
286 the corporation only as authorized in the specific case upon a determination that indemnification of the present or former
287 director, officer, employee or agent is proper in the circumstances because the person has met the applicable standard of
288 conduct set forth in subsections (a) and (b) of this section. Such determination shall be made, with respect to a person who
289 is a director or officer of the corporation at the time of such determination:

290 (1) By a majority vote of the directors who are not parties to such action, suit or proceeding, even though less
291 than a quorum; or

292 (2) By a committee of such directors designated by majority vote of such directors, even though less than a
293 quorum; or

294 (3) If there are no such directors, or if such directors so direct, by independent legal counsel in a written
295 opinion; or

296 (4) By the stockholders.

297 (e) Expenses (including attorneys' fees) incurred by an officer or director of the corporation in defending any civil,
298 criminal, administrative or investigative action, suit or proceeding may be paid by the corporation in advance of the final
299 disposition of such action, suit or proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such director or officer to
300 repay such amount if it shall ultimately be determined that such person is not entitled to be indemnified by the corporation
301 as authorized in this section. Such expenses (including attorneys' fees) incurred by former directors and officers or other
302 employees and agents of the corporation or by persons serving at the request of the corporation as directors, officers,
303 employees or agents of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise may be so paid upon such
304 terms and conditions, if any, as the corporation deems appropriate.

305 (f) The indemnification and advancement of expenses provided by, or granted pursuant to, the other subsections of
306 this section shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those seeking indemnification or advancement of
307 expenses may be entitled under any bylaw, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise, both as
308 to action in such person's official capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding such office. A right to
309 indemnification or to advancement of expenses arising under a provision of the certificate of incorporation or a bylaw shall
310 not be eliminated or impaired by an amendment to or repeal or elimination of the certificate of incorporation or the bylaws
311 after the occurrence of the act or omission that is the subject of the civil, criminal, administrative or investigative action,
312 suit or proceeding for which indemnification or advancement of expenses is sought, unless the provision in effect at the
313 time of such act or omission explicitly authorizes such elimination or impairment after such action or omission has
314 occurred.

315 Section 10. Amend § 212, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
316 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

317 § 212 Voting rights of stockholders; proxies; limitations.

318 (c) Without limiting the manner in which a stockholder may authorize another person or persons to act for such
319 stockholder as proxy pursuant to subsection (b) of this section, the following shall constitute a valid means by which a
320 stockholder may grant such authority:

321 (1) A stockholder, or such stockholder's authorized officer, director, employee or agent, may execute a
322 document authorizing another person or persons to act for such stockholder as proxy. ~~Execution may be accomplished~~
323 ~~by the stockholder or such stockholder's authorized officer, director, employee or agent.~~

324 (2) A stockholder may authorize another person or persons to act for such stockholder as proxy by
325 transmitting or authorizing the transmission of an electronic transmission to the person who will be the holder of the
326 proxy or to a proxy solicitation firm, proxy support service organization or like agent duly authorized by the person
327 who will be the holder of the proxy to receive such transmission, provided that any such transmission must either set
328 forth or be submitted with information from which it can be determined that the transmission was authorized by the
329 stockholder. If it is determined that such transmissions are valid, the inspectors or, if there are no inspectors, such other
330 persons making that determination shall specify the information upon which they relied.

331 (3) The authorization of a person to act as a proxy may be documented, signed and delivered in accordance
332 with § 116 of this title, provided that such authorization shall set forth, or be delivered with information enabling the
333 corporation to determine, the identity of the stockholder granting such authorization.

334 Section 11. Amend § 213, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
335 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

336 § 213 Fixing date for determination of stockholders of record.

337 (b) In order that the corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to consent to corporate action ~~in writing~~
338 without a meeting in accordance with § 228 of this title, the board of directors may fix a record date, which record date
339 shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted by the board of directors, and which
340 date shall not be more than 10 days after the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted by the board
341 of directors. If no record date has been fixed by the board of directors, the record date for determining stockholders entitled
342 to consent to corporate action ~~in writing~~ without a meeting, when no prior action by the board of directors is required by
343 this chapter, shall be the first date on which a signed ~~written~~ consent setting forth the action taken or proposed to be taken is
344 delivered to the corporation ~~by delivery to its registered office in this State, its principal place of business or an officer or~~
345 ~~agent of the corporation having custody of the book in which proceedings of meetings of stockholders are recorded.~~
346 ~~Delivery made to a corporation's registered office shall be by hand or by certified or registered mail, return receipt~~
347 ~~requested in accordance with § 228(d) of this title.~~ If no record date has been fixed by the board of directors and prior
348 action by the board of directors is required by this chapter, the record date for determining stockholders entitled to consent
349 to corporate action in writing without a meeting shall be at the close of business on the day on which the board of directors
350 adopts the resolution taking such prior action.

351 Section 12. Amend § 228, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
352 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

353 § 228 Consent of stockholders or members in lieu of meeting [For application of section, see 81 Del. Laws, c. 86,
354 § 40]

355 (a) Unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation, any action required by this chapter to be taken at
356 any annual or special meeting of stockholders of a corporation, or any action which may be taken at any annual or special
357 meeting of such stockholders, may be taken without a meeting, without prior notice and without a vote, if a consent or
358 consents ~~in writing~~, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by the holders of outstanding stock having not less than
359 the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all shares
360 entitled to vote thereon were present and voted and shall be delivered to the corporation ~~by delivery to its registered office~~
361 ~~in this State, its principal place of business or an officer or agent of the corporation having custody of the book in which~~
362 ~~proceedings of meetings of stockholders are recorded. Delivery made to a corporation's registered office shall be by hand~~
363 ~~or by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested in the manner required by this section.~~

364 (b) Unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation, any action required by this chapter to be taken at
365 a meeting of the members of a nonstock corporation, or any action which may be taken at any meeting of the members of a
366 nonstock corporation, may be taken without a meeting, without prior notice and without a vote, if a consent or consents ~~in~~
367 ~~writing~~, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by members having not less than the minimum number of votes
368 that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all members having a right to vote thereon
369 were present and voted and shall be delivered to the corporation ~~by delivery to its registered office in this State, its principal~~
370 ~~place of business or an officer or agent of the corporation having custody of the book in which proceedings of meetings of~~
371 ~~members are recorded. Delivery made to a corporation's registered office shall be by hand or by certified or registered mail,~~
372 ~~return receipt requested in the manner required by this section.~~

373 (c) A consent must be set forth in writing or in an electronic transmission. No ~~written~~ consent shall be effective to
374 take the corporate action referred to therein unless ~~written~~ consents signed by a sufficient number of holders or members to
375 take action are delivered to the corporation in the manner required by this section within 60 days of the first date on which a
376 ~~written~~ consent is so delivered to the corporation. Any person executing a consent may provide, whether through
377 instruction to an agent or otherwise, that such a consent will be effective at a future time (including a time determined upon
378 the happening of an event), no later than 60 days after such instruction is given or such provision is made, if evidence of
379 such instruction or provision is provided to the corporation. Unless otherwise provided, any such consent shall be revocable
380 prior to its becoming effective. All references to a consent in this section means a consent permitted by this section.

381 (d)(1) An electronic transmission consenting to an action to be taken and transmitted by a stockholder, member or
382 proxyholder, or by a person or persons authorized to act for a stockholder, member or proxyholder, shall be deemed to be
383 written and signed for the purposes of this section, provided that any such electronic transmission sets forth or is delivered
384 with information from which the corporation can determine (A) that the electronic transmission was transmitted by the
385 stockholder, member or proxyholder or by a person or persons authorized to act for the stockholder, member or
386 proxyholder and (B) the date on which such stockholder, member or proxyholder or authorized person or persons
387 transmitted such electronic transmission. A consent given by electronic transmission is delivered to the corporation upon
388 the earliest of: (i) when the consent enters an information processing system, if any, designated by the corporation for
389 receiving consents, so long as the electronic transmission is in a form capable of being processed by that system and the
390 corporation is able to retrieve that electronic transmission; (ii) when a paper reproduction of the consent is delivered to the
391 corporation's principal place of business or an officer or agent of the corporation having custody of the book in which
392 proceedings of meetings of stockholders or members are recorded; (iii) when a paper reproduction of the consent is
393 delivered to the corporation's registered office in this State by hand or by certified or registered mail, return receipt
394 requested; or (iv) when delivered in such other manner, if any, provided by resolution of the board of directors or governing
395 body of the corporation. Whether the corporation has so designated an information processing system to receive consents is
396 determined by the certificate of incorporation, the bylaws or from the context and surrounding circumstances, including the
397 conduct of the corporation. A consent given by electronic transmission is delivered under this section even if no person is
398 aware of its receipt. Receipt of an electronic acknowledgement from an information processing system establishes that a
399 consent given by electronic transmission was received but, by itself, does not establish that the content sent corresponds to
400 the content received. A consent permitted by this section shall be delivered: (i) to the principal place of business of the
401 corporation; (ii) to an officer or agent of the corporation having custody of the book in which proceedings of meetings of
402 stockholders or members are recorded; (iii) to the registered office of the corporation in this State by hand or by certified or
403 registered mail, return receipt requested; or (iv) subject to the next sentence, in accordance with § 116 of this title to an
404 information processing system, if any, designated by the corporation for receiving such consents. In the case of delivery
405 pursuant to the foregoing clause (iv), such consent must set forth or be delivered with information that enables the
406 corporation to determine the date of delivery of such consent and the identity of the person giving such consent, and, if such
407 consent is given by a person authorized to act for a stockholder or member as proxy, such consent must comply with the
408 applicable provisions of § 212(c)(2) & (3) of this title.

409 (2) Any copy, facsimile or other reliable reproduction of a consent in writing may be substituted or used in
410 lieu of the original writing for any and all purposes for which the original writing could be used, provided that such

411 copy, facsimile or other reproduction shall be a complete reproduction of the entire original writing. A consent may be
412 documented and signed in accordance with § 116 of this title, and when so documented or signed shall be deemed to be
413 in writing for purposes of this title; provided that if such consent is delivered pursuant to clause (i), (ii) or (iii) of
414 subsection (d)(1) of this section, such consent must be reproduced and delivered in paper form.

415 (e) Prompt notice of the taking of the corporate action without a meeting by less than unanimous ~~written~~ consent
416 shall be given to those stockholders or members who have not consented ~~in writing~~ and who, if the action had been taken at
417 a meeting, would have been entitled to notice of the meeting if the record date for notice of such meeting had been the date
418 that ~~written~~ consents signed by a sufficient number of holders or members to take the action were delivered to the
419 corporation as provided in this section. In the event that the action which is consented to is such as would have required the
420 filing of a certificate under any other section of this title, if such action had been voted on by stockholders or by members at
421 a meeting thereof, the certificate filed under such other section shall state, in lieu of any statement required by such section
422 concerning any vote of stockholders or members, that ~~written~~ consent has been given in accordance with this section.

423 Section 13. Amend § 232, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
424 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

425 § 232 Delivery of notice; notice by electronic transmission.

426 (b) Without limiting the manner by which notice otherwise may be given effectively to stockholders, but subject
427 to subsection (e) of this section, any notice to stockholders given by the corporation under any provision of this chapter, the
428 certificate of incorporation, or the bylaws shall be effective if given by a form of electronic transmission consented to by
429 the stockholder to whom the notice is given. Any such consent shall be revocable by the stockholder by written notice or
430 electronic transmission to the corporation. A corporation may give a notice by electronic mail in accordance with
431 subsection (a) of this section without obtaining the consent required by this subsection (b).

432 Section 14. Amend § 251, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
433 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

434 § 251 Merger or consolidation of domestic corporations [For application of this section, see 79 Del. Laws, c. 327,
435 § 8 and 80 Del. Laws, c. 265, § 17]

436 (g) Notwithstanding the requirements of subsection (c) of this section, unless expressly required by its certificate
437 of incorporation, no vote of stockholders of a constituent corporation shall be necessary to authorize a merger with or into a
438 single direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of such constituent corporation if:

439 (1) such constituent corporation and the direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of such constituent
440 corporation are the only constituent entities to the merger;

441 (2) each share or fraction of a share of the capital stock of the constituent corporation outstanding immediately
442 prior to the effective time of the merger is converted in the merger into a share or equal fraction of share of capital
443 stock of a holding company having the same designations, rights, powers and preferences, and the qualifications,
444 limitations and restrictions thereof, as the share of stock of the constituent corporation being converted in the merger;

445 (3) the holding company and the constituent corporation are corporations of this State and the direct or
446 indirect wholly-owned subsidiary that is the other constituent entity to the merger is a corporation or limited liability
447 company of this State;

448 (4) the certificate of incorporation and ~~by-laws~~ bylaws of the holding company immediately following the
449 effective time of the merger contain provisions identical to the certificate of incorporation and ~~by-laws~~ bylaws of the
450 constituent corporation immediately prior to the effective time of the merger (other than provisions, if any, regarding
451 the incorporator or incorporators, the corporate name, the registered office and agent, the initial board of directors and
452 the initial subscribers for shares and such provisions contained in any amendment to the certificate of incorporation as
453 were necessary to effect a change, exchange, reclassification, subdivision, combination or cancellation of stock, if such
454 change, exchange, reclassification, subdivision, combination, or cancellation has become effective);

455 (5) as a result of the merger, the constituent corporation or its successor becomes or remains a direct or
456 indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the holding company;

457 (6) the directors of the constituent corporation become or remain the directors of the holding company upon
458 the effective time of the merger;

459 (7) the organizational documents of the surviving entity immediately following the effective time of the
460 merger ~~contain provisions identical to the certificate of incorporation of the constituent corporation immediately prior~~
461 ~~to the effective time of the merger (other than provisions, if any, regarding the incorporator or incorporators, the~~
462 ~~corporate or entity name, the registered office and agent, the initial board of directors and the initial subscribers for~~
463 ~~shares, references to members rather than stockholders or shareholders, references to interests, units or the like rather~~
464 ~~than stock or shares, references to managers, managing members or other members of the governing body rather than~~
465 ~~directors and such provisions contained in any amendment to the certificate of incorporation as were necessary to~~
466 ~~effect a change, exchange, reclassification, subdivision, combination or cancellation of stock, if such change,~~
467 ~~exchange, reclassification, subdivision, combination or cancellation has become effective); provided, however, that (i)~~
468 ~~if the organizational documents of the surviving entity do not contain the following provisions, they shall be amended~~
469 ~~in the merger to contain provisions requiring that (A) any act or transaction by or involving the surviving entity, other~~
470 ~~than the election or removal of directors or managers, managing members or other members of the governing body of~~

471 the surviving entity, that ~~requires, if taken by the constituent corporation immediately prior to the effective time of the~~
472 ~~merger, would require, for its adoption under this chapter or its organizational documents under the certificate of~~
473 ~~incorporation or bylaws of the constituent corporation immediately prior to the effective time of the merger, the~~
474 approval of the stockholders ~~or members of the surviving entity of the constituent corporation,~~ shall, by specific
475 reference to this subsection, require, in addition ~~to approval of the stockholders or members of the surviving entity,~~ the
476 approval of the stockholders of the holding company (or any successor by merger), by the same vote as is required by
477 this chapter and/or by the ~~organizational documents of the surviving entity~~ certificate of incorporation or bylaws of the
478 constituent corporation immediately prior to the effective time of the merger; provided, however, that for purposes of
479 this clause (i)(A), ~~any surviving entity that is not a corporation shall include in such amendment a requirement that the~~
480 ~~approval of the stockholders of the holding company be obtained for any act or transaction by or involving the~~
481 ~~surviving entity, other than the election or removal of directors or managers, managing members or other members of~~
482 ~~the governing body of the surviving entity, which would require the approval of the stockholders of the surviving entity~~
483 ~~if the surviving entity were a corporation subject to this chapter;~~ (B) any amendment of the organizational documents
484 of a surviving entity that is not a corporation, which amendment would, if adopted by a corporation subject to this
485 chapter, be required to be included in the certificate of incorporation of such corporation, shall, by specific reference to
486 this subsection, require, in addition, the approval of the stockholders of the holding company (or any successor by
487 merger), by the same vote as is required by this chapter and/or by the ~~organizational documents of the surviving entity~~
488 certificate of incorporation or bylaws of the constituent corporation immediately prior to the effective time of the
489 merger; and ~~(C)~~(B) the business and affairs of a surviving entity that is not a corporation shall be managed by or under
490 the direction of a board of directors, board of managers or other governing body consisting of individuals who are
491 subject to the same fiduciary duties applicable to, and who are liable for breach of such duties to the same extent as,
492 directors of a corporation subject to this chapter; and (ii) ~~the organizational documents of the surviving entity may be~~
493 ~~amended in the merger (A) to reduce the number of classes and shares of capital stock or other equity interests or units~~
494 ~~that the surviving entity is authorized to issue and (B) to eliminate any provision authorized by § 141(d) of this title;~~
495 and

496 (8) the stockholders of the constituent corporation do not recognize gain or loss for United States federal
497 income tax purposes as determined by the board of directors of the constituent corporation. Neither paragraph (g)(7)(i)
498 of this section nor any provision of a surviving entity's organizational documents required by paragraph (g)(7)(i) of this
499 section shall be deemed or construed to require approval of the stockholders of the holding company to elect or remove
500 directors or managers, managing members or other members of the governing body of the surviving entity. The term

501 "organizational documents", as used in paragraph (g)(7) of this section and in the preceding sentence, shall, when used
502 in reference to a corporation, mean the certificate of incorporation of such corporation, and when used in reference to a
503 limited liability company, mean the limited liability company agreement of such limited liability company.

504 As used in this subsection only, the term "holding company" means a corporation which, from its incorporation
505 until consummation of a merger governed by this subsection, was at all times a direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
506 of the constituent corporation and whose capital stock is issued in such merger. From and after the effective time of a
507 merger adopted by a constituent corporation by action of its board of directors and without any vote of stockholders
508 pursuant to this subsection: (i) to the extent the restrictions of § 203 of this title applied to the constituent corporation and
509 its stockholders at the effective time of the merger, such restrictions shall apply to the holding company and its stockholders
510 immediately after the effective time of the merger as though it were the constituent corporation, and all shares of stock of
511 the holding company acquired in the merger shall for purposes of § 203 of this title be deemed to have been acquired at the
512 time that the shares of stock of the constituent corporation converted in the merger were acquired, and provided further that
513 any stockholder who immediately prior to the effective time of the merger was not an interested stockholder within the
514 meaning of § 203 of this title shall not solely by reason of the merger become an interested stockholder of the holding
515 company, (ii) if the corporate name of the holding company immediately following the effective time of the merger is the
516 same as the corporate name of the constituent corporation immediately prior to the effective time of the merger, the shares
517 of capital stock of the holding company into which the shares of capital stock of the constituent corporation are converted
518 in the merger shall be represented by the stock certificates that previously represented shares of capital stock of the
519 constituent corporation and (iii) to the extent a stockholder of the constituent corporation immediately prior to the merger
520 had standing to institute or maintain derivative litigation on behalf of the constituent corporation, nothing in this section
521 shall be deemed to limit or extinguish such standing. If an agreement of merger is adopted by a constituent corporation by
522 action of its board of directors and without any vote of stockholders pursuant to this subsection, the secretary or assistant
523 secretary of the constituent corporation shall certify on the agreement that the agreement has been adopted pursuant to this
524 subsection and that the conditions specified in the first sentence of this subsection have been satisfied, provided that such
525 certification on the agreement shall not be required if a certificate of merger or consolidation is filed in lieu of filing the
526 agreement. The agreement so adopted and certified shall then be filed and become effective, in accordance with § 103 of
527 this title. Such filing shall constitute a representation by the person who executes the agreement that the facts stated in the
528 certificate remain true immediately prior to such filing.

529 Section 15. Amend § 262, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
530 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

531 § 262 Appraisal rights [For application of this section, see 79 Del. Laws, c. 72, § 22; 79 Del. Laws, c. 122, § 12;
532 80 Del. Laws, c. 265, § 18; 81 Del. Laws, c. 354, § 17; and 82 Del. Laws, c. 45, § 23].

533 (b) Appraisal rights shall be available for the shares of any class or series of stock of a constituent corporation in a
534 merger or consolidation to be effected pursuant to § 251 (other than a merger effected pursuant to § 251(g) of this title), §
535 252, § 254, § 255, § 256, § 257, § 258, § 263 or § 264 of this title:

536 (1) Provided, however, that, ~~except as expressly provided in § 363(b) of this title,~~ no appraisal rights under
537 this section shall be available for the shares of any class or series of stock, which stock, or depository receipts in
538 respect thereof, at the record date fixed to determine the stockholders entitled to receive notice of the meeting of
539 stockholders to act upon the agreement of merger or consolidation (or, in the case of a merger pursuant to § 251(h), as
540 of immediately prior to the execution of the agreement of merger), were either: (i) listed on a national securities
541 exchange or (ii) held of record by more than 2,000 holders; and further provided that no appraisal rights shall be
542 available for any shares of stock of the constituent corporation surviving a merger if the merger did not require for its
543 approval the vote of the stockholders of the surviving corporation as provided in § 251(f) of this title.

544 (2) Notwithstanding paragraph (b)(1) of this section, appraisal rights under this section shall be available for
545 the shares of any class or series of stock of a constituent corporation if the holders thereof are required by the terms of
546 an agreement of merger or consolidation pursuant to §§ 251, 252, 254, 255, 256, 257, 258, 263 and 264 of this title to
547 accept for such stock anything except:

548 a. Shares of stock of the corporation surviving or resulting from such merger or consolidation, or
549 depository receipts in respect thereof;

550 b. Shares of stock of any other corporation, or depository receipts in respect thereof, which shares of
551 stock (or depository receipts in respect thereof) or depository receipts at the effective date of the merger or
552 consolidation will be either listed on a national securities exchange or held of record by more than 2,000 holders;

553 c. Cash in lieu of fractional shares or fractional depository receipts described in the foregoing paragraphs
554 (b)(2)a. and b. of this section; or

555 d. Any combination of the shares of stock, depository receipts and cash in lieu of fractional shares or
556 fractional depository receipts described in the foregoing paragraphs (b)(2)a., b. and c. of this section.

557 (3) In the event all of the stock of a subsidiary Delaware corporation party to a merger effected under § 253 or
558 § 267 of this title is not owned by the parent immediately prior to the merger, appraisal rights shall be available for the
559 shares of the subsidiary Delaware corporation.

560 (4) ~~In the event of an amendment to a corporation's certificate of incorporation contemplated by § 363(a) of~~
561 ~~this title, appraisal rights shall be available as contemplated by § 363(b) of this title, and the procedures of this section,~~
562 ~~including those set forth in subsections (d) and (e) of this section, shall apply as nearly as practicable, with the word~~
563 ~~"amendment" substituted for the words "merger or consolidation," and the word "corporation" substituted for the~~
564 ~~words "constituent corporation" and/or "surviving or resulting corporation." [Repealed.]~~

565 Section 16. Amend § 266, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
566 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

567 § 266 Conversion of a domestic corporation to other entities.

568 (d) Upon the filing in the Office of the Secretary of State of a certificate of conversion to non-Delaware entity in
569 accordance with subsection (c) of this section or upon the future effective date or time of the certificate of conversion to
570 non-Delaware entity and payment to the Secretary of State of all fees prescribed under this title, ~~the Secretary of State shall~~
571 ~~certify that the corporation has filed all documents and paid all fees required by this title, and thereupon the corporation~~
572 ~~shall cease to exist as a corporation of this State at the time the certificate of conversion becomes effective in accordance~~
573 ~~with § 103 of this title. Such~~ A copy of the certificate of conversion to non-Delaware entity certified by the Secretary of
574 State shall be prima facie evidence of the conversion by such corporation out of the State of Delaware.

575 Section 17. Amend § 363, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
576 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

577 § 363 ~~Certain amendments and mergers; votes required; appraisal rights~~ Nonprofit nonstock corporations.

578 (a) ~~Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, a corporation that is not a public benefit corporation, may~~
579 ~~not, without the approval of 2/3 of the outstanding stock of the corporation entitled to vote thereon:~~

580 (1) ~~Amend its certificate of incorporation to include a provision authorized by § 362(a)(1) of this title; or~~

581 (2) ~~Merge or consolidate with or into another entity if, as a result of such merger or consolidation, the shares~~
582 ~~in such corporation would become, or be converted into or exchanged for the right to receive, shares or other equity~~
583 ~~interests in a domestic or foreign public benefit corporation or similar entity.~~

584 ~~The restrictions of this section shall not apply prior to the time that the corporation has received payment for any of its~~
585 ~~capital stock, or in the case of a nonstock corporation, prior to the time that it has members.~~

586 (b) ~~Any stockholder of a corporation that is not a public benefit corporation that holds shares of stock of such~~
587 ~~corporation immediately prior to the effective time of:~~

588 (1) ~~An amendment to the corporation's certificate of incorporation to include a provision authorized by §~~
589 ~~362(a)(1) of this title; or~~

590 (2) A merger or consolidation that would result in the conversion of the corporation's stock into or exchange
591 of the corporation's stock for the right to receive shares or other equity interests in a domestic or foreign public benefit
592 corporation or similar entity;
593 and has neither voted in favor of such amendment or such merger or consolidation nor consented thereto in writing
594 pursuant to § 228 of this title, shall be entitled to an appraisal by the Court of Chancery of the fair value of the
595 stockholder's shares of stock; provided, however, that no appraisal rights under this section shall be available for the shares
596 of any class or series of stock, which stock, or depository receipts in respect thereof, at the record date fixed to determine
597 the stockholders entitled to receive notice of the meeting of stockholders to act upon the agreement of merger or
598 consolidation, or amendment, were either: (i) listed on a national securities exchange or (ii) held of record by more than
599 2,000 holders, unless, in the case of a merger or consolidation, the holders thereof are required by the terms of an agreement
600 of merger or consolidation to accept for such stock anything except (A) shares of stock of any other corporation, or
601 depository receipts in respect thereof, which shares of stock (or depository receipts in respect thereof) or depository receipts
602 at the effective date of the merger or consolidation will be either listed on a national securities exchange or held of record
603 by more than 2,000 holders; (B) cash in lieu of fractional shares or fractional depository receipts described in the foregoing
604 clause (A); or (C) any combination of the shares of stock, depository receipts and cash in lieu of fractional shares or
605 fractional depository receipts described in the foregoing clauses (A) and (B).

606 (e) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, a corporation that is a public benefit corporation may not,
607 without the approval of 2/3 of the outstanding stock of the corporation entitled to vote thereon:

608 (1) Amend its certificate of incorporation to delete or amend a provision authorized by § 362(a)(1) or §
609 366(c) of this title; or

610 (2) Merge or consolidate with or into another entity if, as a result of such merger or consolidation, the shares
611 in such corporation would become, or be converted into or exchanged for the right to receive, shares or other equity
612 interests in a domestic or foreign corporation that is not a public benefit corporation or similar entity and the certificate
613 of incorporation (or similar governing instrument) of which does not contain the identical provisions identifying the
614 public benefit or public benefits pursuant to § 362(a) of this title or imposing requirements pursuant to § 366(c) of this
615 title.

616 (d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, a nonprofit nonstock corporation may not be a constituent corporation to any
617 merger or consolidation governed by this section with a public benefit corporation or in which the certificate of
618 incorporation of the surviving corporation is amended to include a provision authorized by § 362 (a)(1) of this title.

619 Section 18. Amend § 365, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
620 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

621 § 365 Duties of directors.

622 (c) ~~The certificate of incorporation of a public benefit corporation may include a provision that any disinterested~~
623 ~~failure to satisfy this section shall not~~ A director's ownership of or other interest in the stock of the public benefit
624 corporation shall not alone, for the purposes of this section, create a conflict of interest on the part of the director with
625 respect to the director's decision implicating the balancing requirement in subsection (a) of this section, except to the extent
626 that such ownership or interest would create a conflict of interest if the corporation were not a public benefit corporation.
627 In the absence of a conflict of interest, no failure to satisfy that balancing requirement shall, for the purposes of § 102(b)(7)
628 or § 145 of this title, constitute an act or omission not in good faith, or a breach of the duty of loyalty, unless the certificate
629 of incorporation so provides.

630 Section 19. Amend § 367, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
631 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

632 § 367 ~~Derivative suits~~ Suits to enforce the requirements of §365(a).

633 ~~Stockholders of a public benefit corporation owning~~ Any action to enforce the balancing requirement of § 365(a)
634 of this title, including any individual, derivative or any other type of action, may not be brought unless the plaintiffs in such
635 action own individually or collectively, as of the date of instituting such ~~derivative suit~~ action, at least 2% of the
636 corporation's outstanding shares or, in the case of a corporation with shares listed on a national securities exchange, the
637 lesser of such percentage or shares of the corporation with a market value of at least \$2,000,000 ~~in market value, may~~
638 ~~maintain a derivative lawsuit to enforce the requirements set forth in § 365(a) of this title~~ as of the date the action is
639 instituted. This section shall not relieve the plaintiffs from complying with any other conditions applicable to filing a
640 derivative action including § 327 of this title and any rules of the court in which the action is filed.

641 Section 20. Amend § 377, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
642 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

643 § 377 Change of registered agent.

644 (b) Any individual or entity designated by a foreign corporation as its registered agent for service of process may
645 resign ~~by filing with the Secretary of State a signed statement that the registered agent is unwilling to continue to act as the~~
646 ~~registered agent of the corporation for service of process, including in the statement the post-office address of the main or~~
647 ~~headquarters office of the foreign corporation, but such resignation shall not become effective until 30 days after the~~
648 ~~statement is filed. The statement shall be acknowledged by the registered agent and shall contain a representation that~~

649 ~~written notice of resignation was given to the corporation at least 30 days prior to the filing of the statement by mailing or~~
650 ~~delivering such notice to the corporation at its address given in the statement~~ in the same manner as provided in § 136(a) of
651 this title.

652 Section 21. Amend § 391, Title 8 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
653 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

654 § 391 Amounts payable to Secretary of State upon filing certificate or other paper.

655 (a) The following fees and penalties shall be collected by and paid to the Secretary of State, for the use of the
656 State:

657 (1) Upon the receipt for filing of an original certificate of incorporation, the fee shall be computed on the
658 basis of \$0.02 for each share of authorized capital stock having par value up to and including 20,000 shares, \$0.01 for
659 each share in excess of 20,000 shares up to and including 200,000 shares, and 2/5 of a \$0.01 for each share in excess of
660 200,000 shares; \$0.01 for each share of authorized capital stock without par value up to and including 20,000 shares,
661 1/2 of \$0.01 for each share in excess of 20,000 shares up to and including 2,000,000 shares, and 2/5 of \$0.01 for each
662 share in excess of 2,000,000 shares. In no case shall the amount paid be less than \$15. For the purpose of computing
663 the fee on par value stock each \$100 unit of the authorized capital stock shall be counted as 1 assessable share.

664 (2) Upon the receipt for filing of a certificate of amendment of certificate of incorporation, or a certificate of
665 amendment of certificate of incorporation before payment of capital, or a restated certificate of incorporation,
666 increasing the authorized capital stock of a corporation, the fee shall be an amount equal to the difference between the
667 fee computed at the foregoing rates upon the total authorized capital stock of the corporation including the proposed
668 increase, and the fee computed at the foregoing rates upon the total authorized capital stock excluding the proposed
669 increase. In no case shall the amount paid be less than \$30.

670 (3) Upon the receipt for filing of a certificate of amendment of certificate of incorporation before payment of
671 capital and not involving an increase of authorized capital stock, or an amendment to the certificate of incorporation
672 not involving an increase of authorized capital stock, or a restated certificate of incorporation not involving an increase
673 of authorized capital stock, or a certificate of retirement of stock, the fee to be paid shall be \$30. For all other
674 certificates relating to corporations, not otherwise provided for, the fee to be paid shall be \$5.00. In the case of exempt
675 corporations no fee shall be paid under this paragraph.

676 (4) Upon the receipt for filing of a certificate of merger or consolidation of 2 or more corporations, the fee
677 shall be an amount equal to the difference between the fee computed at the foregoing rates upon the total authorized
678 capital stock of the corporation created by the merger or consolidation, and the fee so computed upon the aggregate

679 amount of the total authorized capital stock of the constituent corporations. In no case shall the amount paid be less
680 than \$75. The foregoing fee shall be in addition to any tax or fee required under any other law of this State to be paid
681 by any constituent entity that is not a corporation in connection with the filing of the certificate of merger or
682 consolidation.

683 (5) Upon the receipt for filing of a certificate of dissolution, there shall be paid to and collected by the
684 Secretary of State a fee of:

685 a. Forty dollars; or

686 b. Ten dollars in the case of a certificate of dissolution which certifies that:

687 1. The corporation has no assets and has ceased transacting business; and

688 2. The corporation, for each year since its incorporation in this State, has been required to pay only
689 the minimum franchise tax then prescribed by § 503 of this title; and

690 3. The corporation has paid all franchise taxes and fees due to or assessable by this State through the
691 end of the year in which said certificate of dissolution is filed.

692 (6) Upon the receipt for filing of a certificate of reinstatement of a foreign corporation or a certificate of
693 surrender and withdrawal from the State by a foreign corporation, there shall be collected by and paid to the Secretary
694 of State a fee of \$10.

695 (7) For receiving and filing and/or indexing any certificate, affidavit, agreement or any other paper provided
696 for by this chapter, for which no different fee is specifically prescribed, a fee of \$115 in each case shall be paid to the
697 Secretary of State. The fee in the case of a certificate of incorporation filed as required by § 102 of this title shall be
698 \$25. For entering information from each instrument into the Delaware Corporation Information System in accordance
699 with § 103(c)(8) of this title, the fee shall be \$5.00.

700 a. A certificate of dissolution which meets the criteria stated in paragraph (a)(5)b. of this section shall not
701 be subject to such fee; and

702 b. A certificate of incorporation filed in accordance with § 102 of this title shall be subject to a fee of
703 \$25.

704 (8) For receiving and filing and/or indexing the annual report of a foreign corporation doing business in this
705 State, a fee of \$125 shall be paid. In the event of neglect, refusal or failure on the part of any foreign corporation to file
706 the annual report with the Secretary of State on or before June 30 each year, the corporation shall pay a penalty of
707 \$125.

708 (9) For recording and indexing articles of association and other papers required by this chapter to be recorded
709 by the Secretary of State, a fee computed on the basis of \$0.01 a line shall be paid.

710 (10) For certifying copies of any paper on file provided by this chapter, a fee of \$50 shall be paid for each
711 copy certified. In addition, a fee of \$2.00 per page shall be paid in each instance where the Secretary of State provides
712 the copies of the document to be certified.

713 (11) For issuing any certificate of the Secretary of State other than a certification of a copy under paragraph
714 (a)(10) of this section, or a certificate that recites all of a corporation's filings with the Secretary of State, a fee of \$50
715 shall be paid for each certificate. For issuing any certificate of the Secretary of State that recites all of a corporation's
716 filings with the Secretary of State, a fee of \$175 shall be paid for each certificate. For issuing any certificate via the
717 Division's online services, a fee of up to \$175 shall be paid for each certificate.

718 (12) For filing in the office of the Secretary of State any certificate of change of location or change of
719 registered agent, as provided in § 133 of this title, there shall be collected by and paid to the Secretary of State a fee of
720 \$50, provided that no fee shall be charged pursuant to § 103(c)(6) and (c)(7) of this title.

721 (13) For filing in the office of the Secretary of State any certificate of change of address or change of name of
722 registered agent, as provided in § 134 of this title, there shall be collected by and paid to the Secretary of State a fee of
723 \$50, plus the same fees for receiving, filing, indexing, copying and certifying the same as are charged in the case of
724 filing a certificate of incorporation.

725 (14) For filing in the office of the Secretary of State any certificate of resignation of a registered agent and
726 appointment of a successor, as provided in § 135 of this title, there shall be collected by and paid to the Secretary of
727 State a fee of \$50.

728 (15) For filing in the office of the Secretary of State, any certificate of resignation of a registered agent
729 without appointment of a successor, as provided in §§ 136 and 377 of this title, there shall be collected by and paid to
730 the Secretary of State a fee of \$2.00 for each corporation whose registered agent has resigned by such certificate.

731 (16) For preparing and providing a written report of a record search, a fee of up to \$100 shall be paid.

732 (17) For preclearance of any document for filing, a fee of \$250 shall be paid.

733 (18) For receiving and filing and/or indexing an annual franchise tax report of a corporation provided for by §
734 502 of this title, a fee of \$25 shall be paid by exempt corporations and a fee of \$50 shall be paid by all other
735 corporations.

736 (19) For receiving and filing and/or indexing by the Secretary of State of a certificate of domestication and
737 certificate of incorporation prescribed in § 388(d) of this title, a fee of \$165, plus the fee payable upon the receipt for
738 filing of an original certificate of incorporation, shall be paid.

739 (20) For receiving, reviewing and filing and/or indexing by the Secretary of State of the documents
740 prescribed in § 389(c) of this title, a fee of \$10,000 shall be paid.

741 (21) For receiving, reviewing and filing and/or indexing by the Secretary of State of the documents
742 prescribed in § 389(d) of this title, an annual fee of \$2,500 shall be paid.

743 (22) Except as provided in this section, the fees of the Secretary of State shall be as provided for in § 2315 of
744 Title 29.

745 (23) In the case of exempt corporations, the total fees payable to the Secretary of State upon the filing of a
746 Certificate of Change of Registered Agent and/or Registered Office or a Certificate of Revival shall be \$5.00 and such
747 filings shall be exempt from any fees or assessments pursuant to the requirements of § 103(c)(6) and (c)(7) of this title.

748 (24) For accepting a corporate name reservation application, an application for renewal of a corporate name
749 reservation, or a notice of transfer or cancellation of a corporate name reservation, there shall be collected by and paid
750 to the Secretary of State a fee of up to \$75.

751 (25) For receiving and filing and/or indexing by the Secretary of State of a certificate of transfer or a
752 certificate of continuance prescribed in § 390 of this title, a fee of \$1,000 shall be paid.

753 (26) For receiving and filing and/or indexing by the Secretary of State of a certificate of conversion and
754 certificate of incorporation prescribed in § 265 of this title, a fee of \$115, plus the fee payable upon the receipt for
755 filing of an original certificate of incorporation, shall be paid.

756 (27) For receiving and filing and/or indexing by the Secretary of State of a certificate of conversion
757 prescribed in § 266 of this title, a fee of \$165 shall be paid.

758 (28) For receiving and filing and/or indexing by the Secretary of State of a certificate of validation prescribed
759 in § 204 of this title, a fee of \$2,500 shall be paid; provided, that if the certificate of validation has the effect of
760 increasing the authorized capital stock of a corporation, an additional fee, calculated in accordance with paragraph
761 (a)(2) of this section, shall also be paid.

762 Section 22. Each of Sections 1 through 3, Sections 5 through 13, Section 16, and Sections 17 (other than with
763 respect to the repeal of Section 363(b)(2)) through 21 of this Act shall be effective upon its enactment into law.

764 Section 23. Section 4 shall be effective retroactively as of January 1, 2020 with respect any emergency condition
765 occurring on or after such date and with respect to any action contemplated by Section 4 and taken on or after such date by

766 or on behalf of the corporation with respect to a meeting of stockholders held or a dividend as to which the record date or
767 payment date is anticipated to occur during the pendency of such condition.

768 Section 24. Each of Sections 14, 15 and 17 (solely with respect to the repeal of Section 363(b)(2)) of this Act shall
769 be effective only with respect to a merger or consolidation consummated pursuant to an agreement entered into, or, with
770 respect to a merger consummated pursuant to Section 253, resolutions of the board of directors adopted, on or after its
771 enactment into law.

SYNOPSIS

Section 1. Section 1 of this Act amends Section 102(a) to provide that the name of a corporation must be such as to distinguish it from the name of any registered series of a limited partnership.

Section 2. Section 2 of this Act amends Section 102(b)(7). Section 102(b)(7) authorizes a corporation to include in its certificate of incorporation an exculpatory provision that eliminates or limits the liability of directors for monetary damages for certain breaches of duty. The amendment to Section 102(b)(7) clarifies that an exculpatory provision has the effect of eliminating or limiting liability for monetary damages with respect to any act or omission of a director occurring while the exculpatory provision is in effect. Unless the provision provides otherwise at the time of such act or omission, any future amendment, repeal or elimination of that provision will not revoke the elimination or limitation of liability.

Section 3. Section 3 of this Act amends Section 108(c). To conform to amended Section 116, Section 108(c) is being amended to permit an incorporator or initial director to rely on Section 116 as a basis to document, sign and deliver a consent by electronic means, unless the use of Section 116 is expressly restricted or prohibited by a provision of the certificate of incorporation.

Section 4. Section 4 of this Act amends Section 110. The amendments to Section 110 clarify the types of events that give rise to the availability of emergency powers and confirm certain of the specific powers relating to stockholders' meetings and dividends that may be exercised during an emergency condition. The amendments to Section 110 are not intended, by implication or otherwise, to limit or eliminate the availability of any powers or emergency actions that are not specifically enumerated with respect to stockholders' meetings, dividends, or other matters that are practical and necessary in connection with the particular emergency, or to affect the validity of any action taken in an emergency situation but not authorized by the amendments or taken in a non-emergency situation.

Section 5. Section 5 of this Act amends Section 116. Section 116(a)(2) establishes non-exclusive means to sign documents for purposes of chapter 1 of title 8. An amendment to this provision clarifies that a person may "execute" a document (such as agreements of merger and other documents that require execution pursuant to chapter 1 of title 8) by using any type of signature contemplated by Section 116(a)(2).

Section 116(b) is being amended to allow persons to rely on Section 116(a) as a basis for using an electronic transmission to document director, stockholder, member and incorporator consents and for signing and delivering those documents by electronic means. This amendment supplements provisions that already permitted these consents by electronic means before this amendment. A conforming amendment to Section 116(a)(3) requires that the electronic delivery of stockholder or member consents, and the electronic delivery of documents evidencing a proxy granted by a stockholder or member, must satisfy additional requirements set forth in Section 228(d) (with respect to consents) and Section 212(c) (with respect to proxies).

The final sentence of Section 116(b) is being amended to clarify that a provision in the certificate of incorporation or bylaws may restrict or prohibit only the electronic means (but not the manual means) to document an act or transaction and to sign and deliver a document.

Section 6. Section 6 of this Act amends Section 132(a)(4) to remove erroneous references to a foreign "general" partnership.

Section 7. Section 7 of this Act amends Section 135 to reflect the current practice of the Office of the Secretary of State relating to the appointment of a successor registered agent by a registered agent of a corporation.

Section 8. Section 8 of this Act amends Section 141(f). To conform to amended Section 116, Section 141(f) is being amended to permit a director to rely on Section 116 as a basis to document, sign and deliver a consent by electronic means, unless the use of Section 116 is expressly restricted or prohibited by a certificate of incorporation or bylaw provision adopted pursuant to Section 116(b).

Section 9. Section 9 of this Act amends Sections 145(c) and 145(f). Section 145(c) provides current and former directors and officers a right to indemnification if they are successful (on the merits or otherwise) in defending claims brought against them by reason of their conduct as directors and/or officers. Amended Section 145(c) defines the group of officers who are entitled to this statutory right of indemnification as the officers who are deemed to have consented to the jurisdiction of the State for acts relating to breach of officer duties pursuant to Section 3114(b) of title 10. Section 3114(b)

of title 10 does not apply to residents of the State, but amended Section 145(c) treats residents as if they were non-residents to ensure that persons who hold the officer positions identified in Section 3114(b) are entitled to indemnification, whether or not they are residents of the State. The amendment does not define who qualifies as an officer under Section 145(c) for purposes of a right to indemnification for an act or omission occurring on or before December 31, 2020 and does not define who qualifies as an officer for purposes of the other subsections of Section 145.

Section 145(c) is also amended to add a new subsection (2) that permits (but does not require) a corporation to indemnify other persons who are not current or former directors or officers if they are successful in defense of a proceeding referenced in subsections (a) and (b) of Section 145. A corporation may rely on Section 145(f) to make this permissive indemnification a mandatory right for these other persons, such as pursuant to a provision in the certificate of incorporation, the bylaws, an agreement, or vote of stockholders or disinterested directors. This amendment to Section 145(c) is consistent with case law holding that a corporation lawfully may agree to provide indemnification to a person who is not a director or officer solely based on that person's successful defense of a claim covered by Section 145(a) or (b), without an inquiry into whether such person has met the conduct requirements of Section 145(a) or (b). See, *Cochran v. Stifel Financial Corp.*, Del. Ch. C.A. No. 17350 (Dec. 13, 2000), *aff'd* in part and reversed in part, both on unrelated grounds, 809 A.2d 555 (Del. 2002).

Section 145(f) prohibits the elimination or impairment of a right to indemnification or to advancement by amendment to the certificate of incorporation or the bylaws after the occurrence of the act or omission that is the subject of the civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative action, suit or proceeding for which indemnification is sought, unless the provision in effect at the time of the act or omission explicitly authorizes such elimination or impairment after such act or omission has occurred. The amendment to Section 145(f) clarifies that such prohibition applies in the case of any repeal or elimination of the certificate of incorporation or the bylaws.

Section 10. Section 10 of this Act amends Section 212(c) to add a new subsection (3), which clarifies that a stockholder or member may rely on Section 116 as basis to document a proxy and to sign and deliver a document evidencing the proxy, unless an express provision of the certificate of incorporation or bylaws adopted in accordance with Section 116(b) prohibits or restricts those actions being taken by electronic means. An amendment to subsection (1) of Section 212(c) simplifies the language but does not enact a substantive change.

Section 11. Section 11 of this Act amends Section 213(b). To conform to amended Section 228(d), Section 213(b) is being amended to eliminate redundant references to where, and to whom, a consent may be delivered.

Section 12. Section 12 of this Act amends Section 228. Section 228(d) is being amended by deleting the provisions on documenting, signing and delivering a consent by electronic means, so that those actions may be effected pursuant to amended Section 116, unless an express provision of the certificate of incorporation or bylaws adopted in accordance with Section 116(b) restricts or prohibits a consent from being documented, signed or delivered electronically. The last sentence of amended Section 228(d)(1) requires certain additional information to be provided to the corporation in connection with delivering a consent electronically.

Redundant references to where, and to whom, a consent may be delivered have been deleted from amended Sections 228(a) and (b). References to "written consents" or consents set forth "in writing" have been replaced with a new sentence added to Section 228(c) stating that a consent must be set forth in writing or in an electronic transmission.

Section 13. Section 13 of this Act amends Section 232(b) to clarify that a stockholder's or member's consent is not required in order for a corporation to give the stockholder or member notices by electronic mail pursuant to Section 232(a).

Section 14. Section 14 of this Act amends Section 251(g)(7) to eliminate the requirement, in connection with a merger pursuant to such Section, that the organizational documents of the surviving entity contain provisions identical to the certificate of incorporation of the constituent corporation immediately prior to the merger. This amendment shall not be construed to eliminate the requirement in Section 251(g) that the organizational documents of the surviving entity contain provisions requiring approval of the holding company's stockholders for any act or transaction by the surviving entity that, if taken by the constituent corporation immediately prior to the merger, would have required stockholder approval. This Act also makes clerical changes to Section 251(g)(4). The amendments to Section 251(g) shall be effective with respect to agreements of merger or consolidation consummated pursuant to an agreement entered into on or after their enactment into law.

Section 15. Section 15 of this Act amends Section 262(b) to conform to the amendments to Section 363 relating to public benefit corporations. The amendments to Section 262 shall be effective with respect to a merger or consolidation consummated pursuant to an agreement entered into, or, with respect to a merger consummated pursuant to Section 253, resolutions of the board of directors adopted, on or after their enactment into law.

Section 16. Section 16 of this Act amends Section 266 to reflect the current practice of the Office of the Secretary of State relating to the issuance of a certified copy of a certificate of conversion to non-Delaware entity.

Section 17. Sections 17, 18 and 19 of this Act amend Sections 363, 365 and 367, respectively. The amendments to Section 363 will lower from two-thirds to a majority the stockholder vote required for (1) amendments to a certificate of incorporation that convert a conventional corporation into a public benefit corporation or convert a public benefit corporation into a conventional corporation and (2) mergers that convert shares of conventional corporations into shares of

public benefit corporations or shares of public benefit corporations into shares of conventional corporations. Those amendments will also eliminate appraisal rights for (1) amendments to a certificate of incorporation that convert a conventional corporation into a public benefit corporation and (2) mergers that convert shares of conventional corporations into shares of public benefit corporations. The amendments to Section 363(b)(2) shall be effective with respect to a merger or consolidation consummated pursuant to an agreement entered into, or, with respect to a merger consummated pursuant to Section 253, resolutions of the board of directors adopted, on or after their enactment into law.

The amendments to Section 365(c)(1) clarify that, for the purposes of Section 365(b), a director will not be interested with respect to a balancing decision due to the director's interest in stock of the corporation, except to the extent that such ownership would create a conflict of interest if the corporation were not a public benefit corporation and (2) provide that any failure to satisfy the balancing requirement shall not constitute an act or omission not in good faith for the purposes of Section 102(b)(7) or Section 145, unless the certificate of incorporation otherwise provides.

The amendments to Section 367 clarify that any lawsuit to enforce the balancing requirement to which public benefit corporations are subject must be brought by plaintiffs owning at least 2% of the corporation's outstanding shares or, in the case of certain listed companies, shares with a value of at least \$2,000,000 if such number is lower.

Section 18. Section 20 of this Act amends Section 377(b) to conform the process relating to the resignation of a registered agent of a foreign corporation to the process applicable to the resignation of a registered agent of a corporation under Section 136.

Section 19. Section 21 of this Act amends Section 391(a)(16) to include the maximum fee payable to the Secretary of State for a written report of a record search.

Section 20. Sections 22 through 24 of this Act relate to the effectiveness of the amendments to Title 8. Section 22 of this Act provides that each of Sections 1 through 3, Sections 5 through 13, Section 16, and Sections 17 (other than with respect to the repeal of Section 363(b)(2)) through 21 of this Act is effective upon its enactment into law. Section 23 of this Act provides that Section 4 of this Act is effective retroactively as of January 1, 2020 with respect to any emergency condition occurring on or after such date and with respect to any action contemplated by Section 4 of this Act and taken on or after such date by or on behalf of the corporation with respect to a meeting of stockholders held or a dividend as to which the record date or payment date is anticipated to occur during the pendency of such condition. Section 24 of this Act provides that each of Sections 14, 15 and 17 (solely with respect to the repeal of Section 363(b)(2)) of this Act is effective only with respect to a merger or consolidation consummated pursuant to an agreement entered into, or, with respect to a merger consummated pursuant to Section 253, resolutions of the board of directors adopted, on or after enactment into law of such Section.